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Questions/comments and responses 
 

1. What happens if the network operator’s revenue proposal exceeds the maximum capital cost? 

OECC response: We would like to avoid this situation and there are two steps that mitigate this 
risk. First, the Consumer Trustee can provide advice to the Infrastructure Planner at the 
commencement of a project as to whether the estimated project cost is likely to be in the long-
term financial interests of NSW consumers. Second, the Consumer Trustee must authorise  the 
network operator before it submits a revenue proposal to the AER. If the project cost is above 
the maximum capital cost, the network operator will not be authorised.  

If an AER determination finds the capital costs exceed the maximum capital cost, it will not be 
able to make a revenue determination that incorporates capital costs in excess of the maximum 
set by the Consumer Trustee.  

2. Is the requirement for the IP to consult with the AER on its procurement strategy before 
undertaking the procurement a requirement of the EII Act or an AER expectation? Will the AER 
report on the outcomes of the pre-procurement engagement? 

AER response: It is not a requirement of the EII Act, but we expect there to be a requirement to 
consult in the regulations. To the extent possible, we will be transparent in how we undertake 
our role. 

Our primary mechanism to provide transparency will be our revenue determination. Our 
determination will include a statement as to whether we are satisfied that the competitive 
procurement process is likely to have produced an outcome that reflects prudent, efficient and 
reasonable costs and is otherwise consistent with the EII Act, and an overview of the AER’s 
process and considerations in reaching that decision. 

3. Presumably most of the cost 'saving' of contestable network investment is where the lowest 
possible rate of return is procured for the design in question - is this correct (or is the project 
design itself open for variation too)? If the rate of return is contestable, given the incumbent 
transmission business will likely be the lowest cost operator, could a contestable bid be made to 
finance and build the network asset and hand over operation to the incumbent transmission 
business? 

Can see instances where best outcome is a bid of the rate of return to construct the asset, but 
they won’t be the best party to operate the asset. If the incumbent transmission business is one 
of the bidders under ring-fencing arrangements, you can imagine they would not go into 
partnership with the developer bidder. The best outcome might be through a developer bidder 
bidding initially and then handing over to incumbent transmission business. 

OECC response: Project design is a matter for the Infrastructure Planner, not the AER. The 
model used, including the role of the network operator and the elements subject to a competitive 
process, may change for each procurement. For example, the CWO REZ network project may 
have some limited ability for participants to compete on project design. 

AER response: The model being used for the initial contestable projects is not one where the 
network operator builds the asset and then transfers it to the incumbent transmission business. 
But the EII Act does not preclude a competitive procurement being undertaken on this basis. 
The aim of the framework is to choose the approach that provides the lowest overall costs, not 
just lowest rate or return. The EII Act does provide for a project to be transferred to another 
party at some point in the process. 
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4. When finalising the regulations, it’s important that regulatory risk is reduced to the extent 
possible. Regulatory risk (discretion) increases project risk and costs.Some of the language 
used in the forum may point to regulatory risk in the process (for example, ‘AER expects’ and 
‘AER may presume’). 

The regulations should be consulted upon with stakeholders before they are finalised. 

AER response: We need to balance regulatory risk against the need to to be satisfied that the 
market has turned up and we have had a competitive process. This necessarily requires a 
decision to be made at the end of the process. 

We do not want to get to the end of the process and not be able to implement the outcome, 
which is why we will take a no surprises approach. If we identify an issue with the process, we 
will raise it at the time we become aware. 

OECC response: The policy intent regarding the TET and revenue determination has been 
established via the legislative process and further detail has been developed via the Network 
Infrastructure Projects (Part 5 of the EII Act) Policy Paper, which was consulted on in October 
2021. There is a need to resolve the regulations for the contestable TET and revenue 
determination process ahead of the procurement for the Central-West Orana REZ, so we 
appreciate you bringing this to our attention at the public forum.   

5. Given the AER is relying on the rigor of the competitive procurement process, hypothetically 
speaking, what would happen if some bidders withdrew during the procurement process, would 
it affect the AER decision in anyway? 

AER response: AER oversight of the procurement process means that we could express our 
view on the process before it is concluded. In these circumstances, the Infrastructure Planner 
could potentially adapt the process or take other measures such as moving to the 
non-contestable process. We would only accept the outcome of the procurement process where 
we were satisfied it was likely to have produced an good outcome. 

The market response so far has been strong, so we are hopeful that the competitive process will 
produce good outcomes. 

6. Can you clarify the reference to the capital expenditure requirements in chapter 6A of the 
National Electricity Rules? 

AER response: The reference was in relation to how we will approach the Transmission 
Efficiency Test under the non-contestable approach. The test will largely reflect the existing 
capital assessment process contained in chapter 6A of the NER. 

However, those chapter 6A requirements are not relevant to the contestable approach, as the 
regulations will allow us to consider that capital costs agreed through a competitive procurement 
process meet the Transmission Efficiency Test. 

7. Will there be any provision for public submission on the procurement process (for example, from 
parties involved in the process)? 

AER response: We have not proposed this in the guideline. Because we are overseeing the 
process, we should have visibility of any issues. We are not sure whether there is a lot to be 
gained by further consultation. 

OECC response: The Network Authorisation Guidelines are currently being consulted upon and 
includes the potential for consultation by the Consumer Trustee and the Infrastructure Planner at 
earlier stages in the process, for example on selection of the preferred network option. 


